
 

Newnan City Council Meeting 
APRIL 26, 2022 

Newnan City Hall 
Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers 

25 LaGrange Street 
6:30 PM 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

INVOCATION 

READING OF MINUTES 

A. Minutes from Special Called Meeting on April 12, 2022 

B. Minutes from Regular Meeting on  April 12, 2022 

REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

C. 1 Appointment- Newnan Urban Redevelopment Agency, 3 year term 

D. 4 Appointments- Newnan Youth Activities, 3 year term 

E. Newnan Youth Council - Graduating Seniors 

REPORTS ON OPERATIONS BY CITY MANAGER 

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR 

NEW BUSINESS 

F. To present requests for funding under the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) for external 
applicants 

G. Annexation Request - Annex2022-03 - By Sprayberry's Barbecue, Inc.; 1.224± acres located at 
30 Amlajack Boulevard (tax parcel # 097 5077 013) ; Requested Zoning of CHV (Heavy 
Commercial District) - upgrade and relocate an existing highway sign (billboard) - Decision on 
Referral to Planning Commission 

H. Request from Cultural Arts Commission to have alcohol in Greenville Street Park for the 
Summer Jazz in the Park series 

I. Public Hearing- Request by owner (City of Newnan) to demolish structure located at 100 E 
Washington Street. Structure is not located in a Historic District.  

J. Public Hearing- Request by owner to demolish structure located at 90 Sprayberry Rd. Structure 
is not located in a Historic District.  

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

K. Public Hearing -Annexation Request for Annex 2022-02 (via the 60% annexation method) by 
Melissa Griffis on behalf of North 390, LLC; 5.19± acres on State Route 29 and Millard Farmer 
Industrial Boulevard; Tax Parcel #s (073C 002; 073C 002A; 073C 003; 073C 004; and 073C 
004A); Requested zoning of CGN (General Commercial District) - Consideration of Ordinances  

VISITORS, PETITIONS, COMMUNICATIONS & COMPLAINTS 

L. Request from Rotary to erect memorial crosses during Memorial Day week same as last year 

MOTION TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

M. Motion to Enter into Executive Session 

ADJOURNMENT 
1



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
SPECIAL CALLED WORK SESSION                                                APRIL 12, 2022   

The special called meeting of the City Council of the City of Newnan, Georgia was held on 
Tuesday, April 12, 2022 at 12pm in the Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers of City Hall 
with Mayor Keith Brady presiding.  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Brady called the meeting to order and delivered the invocation.  
  
PRESENT 
 
Mayor Keith Brady: Council members present:  Rhodes Shell, George Alexander; Cynthia 
E. Jenkins (arrived at 1pm), Ray DuBose, Paul Guillaume and Dustin Koritko. Also 
present:  City Manager, Cleatus Phillips; City Clerk, Megan Shea; Assistant City Manager, 
Hasco Craver and City Attorney, Brad Sears 
       
PRESENTATIONS FROM POSSIBLE CALDWELL TANKS REDEVELOPMENT 
PARTNERS 
 
Mayor Brady stated that this is a work session and no decisions or votes will happen 
today. This will come back to Council after staff reviews the presentations and there is 
more discussion.  
 
Assistant City Manager, Hasco Craver explained that the City had released a request for 
qualifications to find a development partner to help the City in realizing the vision for the 
redevelopment of 57 E. Broad St. The City received proposals from 3 firms. One of the 
firms, Pace Lynch, has selected to remove themselves. The two firms presenting have 45 
minutes.  
 
Eric Johnson, CEO and Chairman of CPS stated that this has been a long process and 
very exciting. The demo is completing and remediation will begin at the site. Mr. Johnson 
introduced the first firm to present, Mallory & Evans Development with Fides 
Development. He then explained the role that his company, Comprehensive Program 
Services, helping the City to spread head the redevelopment of the Caldwell Tanks site. 
CPS helped with the master plan along with Nelson International and that plan was 
included in the RFQ for the development partner. They will then help the firm chosen meet 
the goals of the City.  
 
Johnny Dixon, President and Vice Chairman of Mallory & Evans Development began the 
presentation. He gave an overview of what they would be detailing and answer any 
questions. He gave a brief history of Mallory & Evans Development, a 66-year old 
company, located in Decatur. He then detailed their extensive experience with city 
redevelopment and mixed use with recent projects in Albany, GA, Knoxville, TN and 
Atlantic Station in Atlanta, GA. They partner with Fides Development and they are long 
term partners, not merchant developers. They are long term holders and they put their 
own capital into projects, they are looking for long term partnerships.  
 

2



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
SPECIAL CALLED WORK SESSION                                                APRIL 12, 2022   

Josh Magaro, Principal with Fides Development introduced the company as a partner with 
Mallory & Evans. He stated they know that Newnan has a proud history and they are 
hoping to bring a team that build on that pride and continue it forward. He explained that 
Fides was started 2 years ago and that the name Fides means trustworthiness that is 
usually reserved for government. The principals of Fides have about $5 billion in 
experience collectively. They have a long history with Mallory & Evans and New South 
Construction, working on many projects together.  
 
Rob Ragan with New South Construction stated that they have worked with Mallory & 
Evans and Fides on many projects over the years. They have also worked on many 
projects for the City such as CJ Smith Park.  
 
Mayor Brady asked about issues on the Albany project with the development of the 
public/private partnership and how it was resolved? Mr. Dixon explained that the difficulty 
was that it was a new concept and it was the legalities on how to form the partnership that 
were most difficult. The attorneys were able to work through it and craft the necessary 
legal language to make it work. Mr. Dixon stated that since that project things have 
evolved and are vastly easier now for the public/private partnerships to be formed.  
 
Councilman Guillaume asked that as long-term holders are they still invested in projects 
mentioned and what percentage is usually invested? Mr. Dixon stated they are invested in 
all except for the Albany project. He explained it is hard to gauge a percentage on 
investments as it can vary based on leverage and size and scale of the project.  
 
Councilman Alexander asked if they see any large obstacles on first look? Mr. Dixon 
answered no they do not see any major obstacles. They have considered how to blend 
the project esthetically to fit the vision for downtown Newnan. People want to be 
downtown and it would be their teams’ job to deliver something workable, connected, 
livable, esthetically pleasing and financially viable.  
 
Mr. Dixon stated they like the idea of a blend of businesses and not just one anchor retail 
business or company. They also talked about a master lease structure to make the retail 
spaces more financially viable for small businesses. Mayor Pro Tem DuBose asked about 
a boutique hotel? Mr. Dixon said they envision about a 100-room boutique hotel and also 
include conference and meeting space.  
 
Councilman Guillaume asked about changes in office work and companies having more 
remote options, is that being taken into consideration? Mr. Dixon again stated that one 
anchor tenant is a risk and those large anchor companies are decreasing. He explained 
he does not agree that people won’t come back to the office environment. There are 
certain businesses that cannot be taught on Zoom.  
 
Mayor Brady asked who will do the ground up on the residential? Mr. Dixon answered that 
they would do that, they are not going to parcel it out. He stated they will take all the risks. 
They will be the developer of all components and potentially they will have partners on 
some of it such as the hotel.  

3



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
SPECIAL CALLED WORK SESSION                                                APRIL 12, 2022   

Mr. Dixon explained that what is built needs to compliment downtown Newnan and the 
existing buildings in the area. They plan to engage the community from the get go in 
meetings and present the vision to all interested stakeholders. They will take the feedback 
and they will establish a website and social media presence. Possibly public meetings 
monthly.  
 
He then wanted to highlight again that they are not merchant developers. Mallory & Evans 
is a 66-year-old company and they have no litigation history, no corporate attorney. They 
do what they say they are going to do. They want to emphasize support of the downtown 
and not a reimagining of the downtown.  
 
The parking deck was discussed and the parking issue in downtown. They are looking at 
around 600 parking spaces and could be revenue generating. Mayor Brady commented 
that there have been conversations with the County about the parking across the street 
and a pedestrian bridge connecting. Mr. Dixon expressed that he would rather stay away 
from a bridge. Bridges are difficult and expensive. Mayor Brady commented that the City 
just built a pedestrian bridge over I-85.  
 
Councilman Rhodes asked about the biggest economic challenge? Mr. Dixon stated it is 
the hotel but it can be overcome. The hotel industry is recovering from the pandemic. A lot 
of hotel properties have changed hands or had foreclosures. There has been good 
response to a boutique hotel in downtown Newnan. Mayor Pro Tem commented that the 
Downtown Development Authority wants to be exceptional and even beyond that. Mr. 
Dixon stated he realizes you want people to come off I-85 and come to downtown.  
 
Mayor Brady asked about the effects of current supply chain, inflation and interest rate 
challenges? Mr. Dixon stated that interest rates are still artificially low. Mr. Ragan first 
commented on the parking deck and that they can really make the façade blend into the 
community. He then commented that supply chain is an issue currently and they have to 
plan around the big things they need such as glass and glazing, aluminum and 
transformers. That will help develop when construction can begin.  
 
The timeline from contract sign to going vertical was discussed. Mr. Dixon stated possibly 
180-days after contract to go vertical. City Manager stated that Sabre is handling the 
demolition and they are making progress. Jalen Johnson with CPS explained that 
demolition is expected to be complete by mid-May. There are some issues with 
underground but they are on top of it.  
 
There was discussion about the consumer demographic of the hotel. Mr. Dixon stated that 
the week day consumer will be the challenge and that will be tied to the conference and 
meeting space. Concerns were expressed about not detracting from other parts of 
Newnan such as Ashley Park, that it’s a wholistic approach. Mr. Dixon stated the vision is 
that this would be a compliment to the existing City and not a replacement.  
 
City Manager explained that the second presenter scheduled withdrew shortly before the 
meeting. Short recess was taken before next group.  

4



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
SPECIAL CALLED WORK SESSION                                                APRIL 12, 2022   

Return from recess and Mayor Brady recapped on the topic of the presentations. Eric 
Johnson introduced the next group, Sagestone.  
 
Randy Beavers introduced himself, a 5th generation Newnan native. Growing up he spent 
a lot of time in downtown. Newnan is a special place that brought he and his wife back to 
raise a family here. The Sagestone team sees this as an opportunity to help write the next 
chapter of Newnan. Mr. Beavers made a comparison to this project and a hero journey as 
seen in Disney movies. The hero enters into unknown territory and has a guide to help 
navigate the obstacles and then emerge victorious.  
 
Mr. Beavers explained why Sagestone is a unique partner. They have a strong financial 
capacity, patient and committed capital, a best in class development team led by 
downtown residents. It is about quality of life.  
 
Other members of the Sagestone team were introduced. Millard Choate with Packard 
Capital, involved with construction and financial. Alex Hertz, Chief Investment Officer at 
Packard Capital who has been with the team since 2013. Dave Dlugolenski, managing 
partner of Sagestone. He stated that they specialize in multi-family and mixed-use 
development and they seek out complex projects as that’s where they can add the most 
value.  
 
Mitch Headley with Headley Construction introduced himself. He also grew up in Newnan 
and his dad started the business. He has worked on many projects in the City of Newnan 
including the Carnegie restoration, restoration of the historic courthouse and Central 
Baptist Church.  
 
Mr. Beavers discussed the vision that Sagestone has for this project. They don’t know the 
development yet but there will be key components. It needs to be vibrant and 
approachable so there is something for everyone. It needs to be curated, proactively hand 
selecting what will fit with Newnan as a whole. It needs to be collaborative. The key 
considerations will be a mix of uses, balance, connectivity and activity.  
 
Bill Millen with Sagestone explained the placemaking development process that they will 
use. This largely means ongoing community engagement. They will synthesize the input 
and communicate to the stakeholders. They are not just placemaking developers, their job 
continues as they curate active community engagements for the property.  
 
Mr. Millen explained that the process starts at the horizontal stage. The development does 
not end at the property lines and they will take into consideration connecting with 
neighbors and the downtown grid. Next would be the vertical stage where they think about 
scale. They will think of the texture of the product, bringing in historic design elements. 
The goal is to provide a space that feels like it’s always been an integral part of downtown 
Newnan.  
   
Mr. Dlugolenski discussed the groups experience including a project in downtown 
Memphis that is the largest public/private partnership in Memphis history. He then gave a 

5



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
SPECIAL CALLED WORK SESSION                                                APRIL 12, 2022   

sample time line. Proper planning is important and they will create a timeline that works for 
everyone.  
 
Mayor Brady asked if they have thought about the hotel flag? Mr. Dlugolenski stated they 
have not had in-depth conversations yet. He stated they do see it as at least 100-120 key 
hotel, maybe up to 150. They are looking for a balance between for sale and for rent on 
the housing side. They would also engage a management company and HOA put in 
place.  
 
Council asked about the retail spaces and parking deck plans. Mr. Dlugolenski explained 
that they envision a highly curated F&B component and some neighborhood goods and 
services. They would bring in retail consultants to analyze the markets. As far as the 
parking deck they know there is a need in the community but they will be careful to not 
over build the parking. They would have a parking study done.  
 
Councilman Guillaume asked about the mix of for sale and for rent, any concern of people 
not wanting to buy next to rentals? Mr. Dlugolenski stated they have not seen issues with 
that. Adam Brown with Sagestone was involved with Avalon and Halycon residential 
projects and stated there is actually a premium on demand for product part of mixed use.  
 
Councillman Shell asked about the biggest economic challenge? Mr. Dlugolenski stated 
the hospitality component will be the hardest. That requires strong, well capitalized, long 
term investors.  
 
Councilwoman Jenkins asked about the placemaking process and examples of projects. 
Mr. Beavers stated is about setting up regular scheduled communication. Showing 
updates during the design process. The most important part will be the public space. It will 
help bring people back. An example is The Metropolitan in Atlanta that was a mixed 
commercial project they worked on, in a very transitional area of Atlanta. They went out to 
the community on the front end, asking what they wanted to see.  
 
Councilwoman Jenkins asked about an element of work force housing in this project? Mr. 
Beavers answered in most of their public/private partnerships it is part of their 
development agreement. Typically, 10-20% of the program would be geared toward work 
force or affordable housing requirements.  
 
 
Mayor Brady concluded the meeting, explaining that as we move through the process City 
Staff may reach out with questions. This will come back to Council as an agenda item 
hopefully in the next month.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
SPECIAL CALLED WORK SESSION                                                APRIL 12, 2022   

ADJOURNMENT  
 
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Councilman Koritko to adjourn the 
meeting at 2:27PM 
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     
___________________      _________________ 
Megan Shea, City Clerk      Keith Brady, Mayor 
    

7



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                                APRIL 12, 2022____   

The regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Newnan, Georgia was held on 
Tuesday, April 12, 2022 at 2:30 p.m. in the Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers of City Hall 
with Mayor Keith Brady presiding.  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Brady called the meeting to order and delivered the invocation. 
  
PRESENT 
 
Mayor Keith Brady: Council members present:  Rhodes Shell, George Alexander; Ray 
DuBose, Cynthia Jenkins, Dustin Koritko and Paul Guillaume.  Also present:  City 
Manager, Cleatus Phillips; Assistant City Manager, Hasco Craver; City Clerk, Megan Shea 
and City Attorney, Brad Sears.   
        
MINUTES – REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING – MARCH 22, 2022 
 
Motion by Councilman Koritko, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem DuBose to dispense with the 
reading of the minutes of the Regular Council meeting on March 22, 2022 and adopt them 
as presented.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)   
 
OFF AGENDA 
 
Request to amend the agenda. Explore Newnan-Coweta photo shoot request for parking 
spaces.  
 
Motion by Councilman Guillaume, seconded by Councilman Koritko to amend the agenda 
to include the ENCI item.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
      
APPOINTMENTS- NEWNAN URBAN REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, 3 YEAR TERM 
 
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Councilman Koritko to re-appoint Sara 
Freeman for another term.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
Motion by Mayor Brady, seconded by Councilwoman Jenkins to re-appoint Cindy Eidson 
for another term. 
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 

8



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                                APRIL 12, 2022____   

Mayor Brady asked the City Manager to put Councilwoman Jenkins appointment on the 
next agenda. 
 
APPOINTMENTS- NEWNAN YOUTH ACTIVITIES, 3 YEAR TERM 
 
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem DuBose to re-appoint Roy 
Garner for another term.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
Mayor Brady asked the City Manager to place his appointments and Councilwoman 
Jenkins appointments on the next agenda. 
 
ANNUAL REPORT- WATER & LIGHT COMMISSION 
 
Bobby Lee, Chairman of the Water & Light Commission presented the annual report. He 
gave an overview of the members of the commission. Newnan Utilities has been in 
business since 1904 and are committed to our community. They treat 4.7 million gallons of 
water daily with 1.2 million gallons going to Coweta County. They have a compost 
program that keeps 5,000 tons of biosolids out of landfills annually. They are currently at 
75% clean fuel sources. They reinvest $8.3 million in infrastructure. Their most valuable 
resource is their 102 full time employees who help manage over 200 miles of water/sewer 
pipe and 205 miles of electric distribution lines. They are proud to say they have a 92% 
customer satisfaction rating.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING- APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE- 
BEVERAGE VAULT  
 
Mayor Brady open a public hearing on the application for a Retail Off Premise (Package) 
Sales of Distilled Spirits, Malt Beverages and Wine License for Beverage Vault, 109 
Bullsboro Dr. He stated this is the third application for package store.  
 
Rocky Singh representing his uncle, the applicant, was present. Mayor Brady asked if the 
current building was going to be torn down or rehabbed? Mr. Singh stated they have had a 
few contractors out to look at the building and have decided to rehab it and expand it. It 
will look much better when it’s renovated.  
 
No one spoke for or against the application.  Mayor Brady closed the public hearing.  The 
City Clerk and City Attorney advised that all the documentation had been received and 
everything was in order. 
 
Motion by Councilman Guillaume, seconded by Councilwoman Jenkins to approve the 
application for a Retail Off Premise (Package) Sales Distilled Spirits, Malt Beverages and 
Wine License.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  

9



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                                APRIL 12, 2022____   

PUBLIC HEARING- APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE- GO JUU, 
LLC DBA GO JUU RESTAURANT  
 
Mayor Brady open a public hearing on the application for a Retail On Premise (Pouring) 
Sales of Malt Beverages and Wine License for Go Juu, LLC dba Go Juu Restaurant- 311 
Bullsboro Dr. Ste 190 
 
A representative of applicant was present for the hearing. No one spoke for or against the 
application.  Mayor Brady closed the public hearing.  The City Clerk advised that all the 
documentation had been received and everything was in order. 
 
Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilman Guillaume to approve the 
application for a Retail On Premise (Pouring) Sales of Malt Beverages and Wine License. 
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
PUBLIC HEARING- APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE – TAYCAN 
OF NEWNAN, LLC 
 
Mayor Brady open a public hearing on the application for a Retail On Premise (Pouring) 
Sales of Malt Beverages and Wine License for Taycan of Newnan, LLC- 1119 Bullsboro 
Dr.   
 
A representative of applicant was present for the hearing. No one spoke for or against the 
application.  Mayor Brady closed the public hearing.  The City Clerk advised that all the 
documentation had been received and everything was in order. 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem DuBose, seconded by Councilman Shell to approve the 
application for a Retail On Premise (Pouring) Sales Distilled Spirits, Malt Beverages and 
Wine License. 
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
PUBLIC HEARING- APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE- EL 
CARNAL TACOS & MARISCOS, LLC  
 
Mayor Brady open a public hearing on the application for a Retail On Premise (Pouring) 
Sales of Distilled Spirits, Malt Beverages and Wine License for El Carnal Tacos & 
Mariscos, LLC- 534 Bullsboro Dr.   
 
A representative of applicant was present for the hearing. No one spoke for or against the 
application.  Mayor Brady closed the public hearing.  The City Clerk advised that all the 
documentation had been received and everything was in order. 
 

10



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                                APRIL 12, 2022____   

Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilwoman Jenkins to approve the 
application for a Retail On Premise (Pouring) Sales Distilled Spirits, Malt Beverages and 
Wine License. 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
PUBLIC HEARING- APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE- NEWNAN 
GAS & FOOD, LLC 
 
Mayor Brady open a public hearing on the application for a Retail Off Premise (Package) 
Sales of Malt Beverages and Wine License for Newnan Gas & Food, LLC- 67 Market 
Square Road.  
 
A representative of applicant was present for the hearing. No one spoke for or against the 
application.  Mayor Brady closed the public hearing.  The City Clerk advised that all the 
documentation had been received and everything was in order. 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem DuBose, seconded by Councilman Koritko to approve the 
application for a Retail Off Premise (Package) Sales of Malt Beverages and Wine License. 
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
PUBLIC HEARING- APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE- KROGER 
#363 
 
Mayor Brady open a public hearing on the application for a Retail Off Premise (Package) 
Sales of Malt Beverages and Wine License for Kroger #363- 48 Bullsboro Dr.   
 
A representative of applicant was present for the hearing. No one spoke for or against the 
application.  Mayor Brady closed the public hearing.  The City Clerk advised that all the 
documentation had been received and everything was in order. 
 
Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilman Koritko to approve the application 
for a Retail Off Premise (Package) Sales of Malt Beverages and Wine License. 
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION TO CREATE THE CITY OF NEWNAN TWO 
HUNDREDTH ANNIVERSARY CELEBRATION PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Councilman Koritko proposed to change the name of the committee to “Bicentennial” as 
opposed to Two Hundredth Anniversary. City Manager suggested giving 60 days to put 
the appointments on the agenda.  
 
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Councilman Shell to adopt the resolution 
with amended name.  

MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  

11



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                                APRIL 12, 2022____   

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION TO DECLARE A LOCAL STATE OF 
EMERGENCY IN THE CITY OF NEWNNA RELATED TO DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION 
AND DEMOLITION ACTIVITES AT NEWNAN CROSSING BLVD EAST DUE TO 
CULVERT COLLAPSE 
 
Ray Norton, Public Works Director explained that they have engaged ISE to come up with 
a design and identified a design is buildable in a short time frame. The emergency 
ordinance is being requested to secure the contractor and get the road opened as soon as 
possible. Also, to avoid back up of water if the pipe were to fail completely. Materials have 
been quoted, the actual concrete structure but the lead times are 12-15 weeks 
engineering and then 12-20 weeks of construction. A local contractor has been identified 
and can start immediately.  
 
Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilwoman Jenkins to approve the 
resolution as presented.   
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
REQUEST FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Mayor Brady explained that the next 7 agenda items are all requests for public hearings to 
be scheduled for May 24, 2022 and so would be considered under one motion. Mayor 
Brady read all the addresses being considered; 25 Pinson St., 157 Lagrange St., 5 Mink 
Hollow Ct., 66 Robinson St., 22 Smith St., 5 Smith St. and 21 Johnson Ave.  
 
Councilwoman Jenkins asked what made these properties stand out? Matt Murray, Code 
Enforcement Officer stated these properties are on the red tag list and have the most 
significant damage and there has been little communication from the owners. There were 
130 properties on the red tag list after the storm and now 12 left that are still in severe 
condition. 5 were brought before Council last month and since then 2 have been torn 
down.  
 
Motion by Councilman Guillaume, seconded by Councilman Alexander to schedule public 
hearings on May 24, 2022 for all 7 properties.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
REZONING REQUEST- RZ2022-02 BY ALICE CORNEJO FOR DUI SCHOOL OF 
COWETA, INC. ; 0.27 + ACRES AT 39 MAIN STREET; REQUESTED ZONING OF CGN 
(GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT) – FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
 
No action needed.  
 
       
 

12



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                                APRIL 12, 2022____   

REZONING REQUEST- RZ2022-03 BY CHER MCWILLIAMS; 0.22 + ACRES AT 14 LEE 
STREET; REQUESTED ZONING OF RU-1 (URBAN RESIDENTIAL DWELLING 
DISTRICT-HISTORICAL AND INFILL) – FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
 
No action needed.  
 
CONSIDERATION OF CONTRACT EXTENSION FOR CONSULTING SERVICES FOR 
DISASTER RECOVERY AND FEMA PUBLIC ASSISTANCE 
 
Ray Norton, Public Works Director explained that this is for the contract with Goodwyn, 
Mills & Cawood and the original RFQ allowed for 1-year renewals.  
 
Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilwoman Jenkins to approve the contract 
extension as presented.   
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
CONSIDERATION OF CONTRACT EXTENSION FOR DEBRIS MONITORING, 
DISASTER RECOVERY AND EMERGENCY PLANNING SERVICES 
 
Mr. Norton stated that this is a one-year extension on this contract. In the event of another 
disaster someone is on standby.  
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem DuBose, seconded by Councilman Koritko to approve the 
contract extension as presented. 
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
CONSIDERATION OF A CONTRACT EXTENSION FOR DEBRIS REMOVAL 
SERVICES 
 
Mr. Norton stated this is the same as the previous agenda item but for debris removal 
services. If something happens the company is already ready to go.  
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem DuBose, seconded by Councilman Guillaume to approve the 
contract extension as presented. 
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
STAFF REPORT RELATED TO MERRIS MANAGEMENT & LEADERSHIP 
CONSULTING PROJECT 
 
Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager, stated that this report was requested by Council. 
Councilwoman Jenkins explained that she brought this up in February to get an update. 
Since the contractor hired for this stepped away there was never a replacement found. 
She asked Council to continue the process and hire someone else.  

13



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                                APRIL 12, 2022____   

Couincilman Guillaume expressed concern that things have changed since this was first 
discussed and suggested moving forward by discussing this further and re-wording the 
resolution so there is a clearer idea of what is needed. He suggested a work session to 
further discuss on how to move forward.  
 
City Manager explained that an extensive amount of time was originally spent looking for 
consulting firms to help with this and many found either did not have the resources or 
time. If Council does want to move forward the approach would need to be looked at 
again. Mr. Craver also stated if the scope is redefined then the RFP will look different.  
 
There was a discussion about a work session and a time frame.  
 
Motion by Councilman Guillaume, seconded by Councilwoman Jenkins to schedule a 
work session to discuss on May 24, 2022 at 5:30pm.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING (CONTINUED)- 178 LAGRANGE ST.- RESOLUTION TO REPAIR 
OR DEMOLISH 
 
Mayor Brady opened the public hearing. 
 
Matt Murray, Code Enforcement officer explained that this is continued from the March 
22nd meeting. This property was vacant prior to the storm and then sustained significant 
damage. There is a small loan on the property through Bank of America. The heirs of the 
estate wanted to sell the property and had a contract that has since fallen through but 
there is not another individual interested.  
 
Vicky White, realtor representing the buyer for the property. The buyer is paying for the 
fines, fees and probate and are supposed to close next week. Councilman Shell asked 
what the buyers plan is for the property? Ms. White stated he wants to try and rehab the 
property. The buyer has contractors to look at the property and if it’s not feasible he would 
demolish in 30 days. Chris Reading, attorney for Bank of America was present and stated 
they are willing to work with the heirs.  
 
City Attorney explained that if all the heirs sign off on the probate it could take 45 days. He 
suggested that 45 days on the resolution would be more adequate.  
 
Mayor Brady closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilman Alexander to adopt a resolution to 
repair or demolish in 45 days.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
 

14



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                                APRIL 12, 2022____   

OFF AGENDA ITEM 
 
Request from Explore Newnan-Coweta for 4 parking spaces on East Court Square on 
Friday, May 22nd from 11am-12pm. There was discussion as to when the spots would be 
blocked off.  
 
Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilman Alexander to approve the request 
as presented.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
REQUEST FOR 3 PARKING SPACES IN FRONT OF THE ALAMO/FABIANOS FOR 
EVENT SPONSORS, JUNE-DECEMBER 2022 
 
Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager explained that the understanding is that this for 
displaying automobiles from third party sponsors. Cody Kelly from The Alamo was present 
and clarified that yes this is for sponsors. One is an auto import company from Newnan 
and they will have some cool custom cars to park out front. He stated this is part of series 
of events they are calling “The Hustle” and it will be different each month.  
 
City Manager explained that it was discussed to handle this differently. Possibly provide 
The Alamo the cones and it is their responsibility to watch the spots and put the cones out 
when a vehicle leaves a spot. He does not feel they should be allowed to call the police at 
8:30pm and say a car needs to be towed. Mr. Kelly stated they have hosts and security 
who could watch the spots and put the cones out after 8pm.  
 
Cher McWilliams, owner of Leaf & Bean on the square spoke to the downtown parking 
issue and concern about what time they would be allowed to block the spots. There was 
discussion about the timing and the request being for 7 months. Mr. Craver suggested 
testing this out for a month or two and seeing how it goes then it could be extended.  
 
Motion by Councilwoman Jenkins, seconded by Councilman Guillaume to approve the 
request with the condition that the cones cannot be set out before 8pm and approved for 
June and July.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
REQUEST TO CLOSE CUL DE SAC AT THE END OF WOODLANE DR. ON MAY 15TH 
FOR NEIGHBORHOOD PARTY 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem DuBose, seconded by Councilman Alexander to approve the 
request as presented.                        
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 

15



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                                APRIL 12, 2022____   

REQUEST FROM NEWNAN COWETA ART ASSOCIATION ON BEHALF OF CORNER 
ARTS GALLERY TO HOST ANNUAL LABOR DAY FESTIVAL, SEPTEMBER 5, 2022 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem DuBose, seconded by Councilman Alexander to approve the 
request as presented.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
 
       
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
MOTION EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem DuBose, seconded by Councilman Alexander that we now 
enter into closed session as allowed by O.C.G.A. Section 50-14-4 and pursuant to advice 
by the City Attorney, for the purpose of discussing legal and personnel issues and that we 
move, in open session to adopt a resolution authorizing and directing the Mayor or 
presiding officer to execute an affidavit in compliance with O.C.G.A. Section 50-14-4, and 
that this body ratify the actions of the Council taken in closed session and confirm that the 
subject matters of the closed session were within exceptions permitted by the open 
meetings law at 3:30pmPM.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
RESOLUTION/MAYOR’S AFFIDAVIT FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem DuBose, seconded by Councilman Alexander to adopt the 
resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the affidavit stating that the subject matter of 
the closed portion of the Council was within the exceptions provided by O.C.G.A. Section 
50-14-4(b). 
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
 
PETITION 
 
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Councilman Koritko to not object to the 
petition as presented. 
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
 
 
 
 

16



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                                APRIL 12, 2022____   

 
ADJOURNMENT  
   
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Councilman Koritko to adjourn the Council 
meeting at 4:05pm.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________      _________________ 
Megan Shea, City Clerk      Keith Brady, Mayor 
    

17



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: April 26th, 2022   
 
Agenda Item:  Presentation of external requests for funds under the 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 
 
Prepared and presented by:   Andrew Moody, ARPA Special Project 

Manager  
 

Purpose:  
 
To present requests for funding under the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) for external 
applicants 
 
Background:  
 
The applications have been screened by the ARPA Special Project Manager for eligibility and 
has been reviewed and scored by the established review committee. The decision to obligate 
the funds requested in applications lies with the City Council. Council may decide to fund the 
request entirely, partially, or not at all. Recipients of these funds may be regarded as 
beneficiaries under categories that provide fiscal benefit only. Applicants that apply under 
categories that require a specific project output are to be regarded as subrecipients and will be 
subject to all principles and guidelines associated to the ARPA and the City of Newnan 
procurement policy.  
 
Funding Request: 
 
1. Boys and Girls Club (Howard Warner/Newnan-Coweta), 2.25 Addressing Educational 

Disparities: $135,472 
2. Let Them Eat Toffee, 2.29 Assistance to Small Businesses, $9,697 
3. Polish Me Pretty, 2.29 Assistance to Small Businesses: $28,000 
 
COMBINED TOTAL: $173,169 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Council may decide to fund the request entirely, partially, or not at all. 
 
Attachments: Application summaries for; 
 
1. Boys and Girls Club (Howard Warner/Newnan-Coweta), 2.25 Addressing Educational 

Disparities 
2. Let Them Eat Toffee, 2.29 Assistance to Small Businesses 
3. Polish Me Pretty, 2.29 Assistance to Small Businesses 
 
Previous Discussions with Council:  
 
On March 8th, 2022 the Council approved the ARPA Small Business grant program which 
established parameters for business to be considered eligible for funding.   

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



 

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

Date: April 26, 2022 

Agenda 

Item: 

Annexation Request for Annex2022-03 by Sprayberry’s 

Barbecue, Inc.; 1.224± acres located at 30 Amlajack 

Boulevard (Tax Parcel # 097 5077 013); Requested zoning 

of CHV (Heavy Commercial District) – Decision on 

Referral to Planning Commission 

Prepared By: Tracy S. Dunnavant, Planning Director 

 

 
Purpose:  Donald L. Sprayberry, Jr., on behalf of Sprayberry’s Barbecue, Inc., is requesting the 

annexation of tax parcel # 097 5077 013 into the city limits.  The parcels contain approximately 1.224± 

acres and is located 30 Amlajack Boulevard.   

 

Land Owners Tax ID Numbers Acreage Location 

 
Sprayberry’s Barbecue, Inc. 

 
097 5077 013 

 
 
 

 
1.224± acres 

 
 
 
 

 
30 Amlajack 
Boulevard 

 

 

Background:  The petitioner is requesting the annexation of 1.224± acres located at 30 Amlajack 

Boulevard.  The tract fronts on I-85 and currently has an existing highway sign (billboard) on the 

property. The petitioner has indicated that the existing sign is only 15’ tall and with the Georgia 

Department of Transportation’s (GDOT) taller wildlife resistant fencing, the visibility of the sign has 

been impacted.  The petitioner is seeking to replace the existing sign with a taller multiple message 

highway sign, which is not permitted under the County’s current zoning ordinance.  The petitioner has 

indicated that he did meet with the County, but they informed him that  he could not raise, relocate, or 

construct a new sign.  The requested zoning designation for the property is CHV (Heavy Commercial 

District).   

Within the city limits, multiple message highway signs require a special exception and 400 foot of road 

frontage.  As a condition of the request, the petitioner is asking that the special exception be granted and 

that the site be given a variance for the road frontage since the parcel only has 389 feet. The petitioner has 

also indicated a willingness for the sign to be used to advertise Amber alerts, Mattie’s Call, FEMA, 

annual festivals and city events. 

OPTIONS:   

 

A. Act to pursue Annexation/Rezoning 

B. Deny the Annexation/Rezoning Petition 

Recommendation:  N/A 

 

Previous Discussion with Council:  None 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: 4/18/2022        
 
Agenda Item:  Jazz in the Park   
  
Prepared By: Katie Mosley 
  
Submitted By: Katie Mosley 
    

 
 
Purpose:  The Newnan Cultural Arts Commission is requesting to host the annual Summer Jazz in the 
Park series on the following dates: 6/10/22, 7/8/22, 8/5/22, 9/9/22.   The commission is asking for 
permission to have alcohol in Greenville Street Park according to city code 3-27 on the aforementioned 
dates from 7:00 p.m. – 10:30 p.m. and for the alcohol boundaries to be expanded to include Greenville 
Street Park during the Jazz in the Park events. 
 
Background:  NCAC received approval from the Downtown Development Authority on March 9, 2022 to bring 

this request before Newnan City Council.   
 

    
Funding: N/A 

 
 
Recommendation:  N/A 
  
 
Attachments:  

 
 

 
Previous Discussion with Council:    N/A 

 

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



1 

 

City of Newnan, Georgia – City Council 
 
Date:  April 26, 2022 
 
Agenda Item: Annexation Request (Via the 60% Method) – 

Annex2022-02; 5.243± acres located on North Highway 
29 (Tax Parcel #s 073C 002; 073C 002A; 073C 003; 
073C 004 and 073C 004A) Requested zoning of CGN 
(General Commercial District)  

 
Prepared and Presented by:  Tracy Dunnavant, Planning Director 
 

 

 
APPLICANT INFORMATION:   
 
Melissa Griffis on behalf of North 390, LLC 
147 Jackson Street 
Newnan, GA  30263 
 
** North 390, LLC owns 4 of the 5 tracts that are part of this request.  The other tract is owned 
by Newnan Auto Body and Glass Repairs, Inc, which is not petitioning for the annexation but 
has been included in the application under the 60% method of annexation. 
 
 
SITE INFORMATION: 
 
The tracts consists of 5.243± total acres located on North Highway 29 and further identified as 
tax parcel #073C 004 (0.71 acre vacant lot), and tax parcel #073C 004A (0.88 acre vacant lot) 
both described in Deed Book 5327, Page 459, Coweta County records; and tax parcel #073C 
003 (1.23 acres, 460 N. Highway 29) and tax parcel #073C 002A (1.23 acres, 474 N. Highway 
29) both parcels described in Deed Book 5274, Page 631 Coweta County records; and tax 
parcel #073C 002 (1.24 acres, 484 N Highway 29) described in Deed Book 4288 Page 566, 
Coweta County records.  The tracts are currently under the County’s jurisdiction, are zoned RC 
(Rural Conservation) and C (Commercial), and are located in the County’s “Employment 
Center” Character Area on the County’s Future Land Use Map.     
 

 

63



2 

 

 
OVERVIEW OF REQUEST: 
 
The petitioner is requesting the annexation, by the 60% method, of five parcels located on North 
Highway 29.   Annexation via the 60% method requires not less than 60% of the resident 
electors as well as the owners of not less than 60% of the real property within the proposed 
annexation boundary to agree to the annexation in order for the City to consider the request.   
Staff has reviewed the application and determined that it meets these requirements as there are 
no resident electors on the properties and the owners of roughly 77% of the land area are 
making the request.  The 60% method is being used because leaving the Newnan Auto Body 
and Glass Repairs, Inc. tract in the County would create an island which is not permitted under 
state law. 
 
The requested zoning of the property is CGN (General Commercial District).  The applicant is 
seeking to develop a commercial subdivision on the site which would consist of three tracts.  
Newnan Auto Body and Glass Repairs, Inc.’s property is not included in the proposed 

subdivision.  Annexation of the property would allow the tracts to take advantage of city 

services. 

 
 
The tracts will be subdivided as follows:  Tract “A” 1.03± acres, Tract “B” 1.00± acres and Tract 
“C” 2.00± acres.  The tracts will be accessed via a proposed interior road.  The applicant has 
not provided specific commercial uses for the three tracts.   
 
STANDARDS: 
 
In making a decision, the Zoning Ordinance requires the Planning Commission and the City 
Council to give reasonable consideration to the following standards.  Staff has assessed each 

standard and identified those with a green check mark  as standards being met by the 

proposed rezoning and those with a red “X”  as standards not being met.  
 
Is the proposed use suitable in view of the zoning and development of adjacent and 
nearby property?   The subject tracts are located at the intersection of Millard Farmer Industrial 
Boulevard and North Highway 29.  They are primarily surrounded by commercial uses with the 
property lines to the north bordering the rear yards of several single-family homes that are a part 
of Avery Park subdivision. To the south is North Highway 29 and various commercial properties 
including a Citgo gas station, Pelican’s Snoballs, and the Little Giant Shopping Center.  Millard 
Farmer Industrial Boulevard and the old Coweta Fayette EMC complex are located to the west. 
Another gas station, a detailing shop and a veterinary clinic abut the body shop tract to the east.   

64



3 

 

 
Staff feels commercial uses would be suitable given the existing commercial properties in the 
area and the tracts’ location at the intersection of two arterial roads.  In addition, three of the five 
tracts already have a commercial zoning designation in the County, so there would be no 
change in terms of land use.  Also, while they do abut residential properties to the north, the 
applicant will be required to have a 35-foot densely planted buffer to protect those homes.   
 

Staff Assessment – PROPOSED USE IS SUITABLE   
 
Will the proposed use adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby 
property?   The tracts’ frontages are zoned commercial in the County, so commercial uses can 
already be built on the majority of the tracts.  In addition, two of the tracts have already been 
used for commercial purposes.  A 35’ densely planted buffer will be required between the 
commercial properties and the residential homes to ensure a separation between the uses.  The 
City Landscape Architect will review all landscaping plans to determine compliance with the 
city’s landscaping requirements. 
 
The greatest impact from this development will be traffic; however, since the applicant has not 
provided specific uses, the number of trips generated is yet to be determined.  It should be 
noted that the tracts are located at the corner of two arterial roads.  The applicant is planning for 
an interior drive to provide access for the commercial subdivision, but the Georgia Department 
of Transportation (GDOT) will determine where and what type of access they will be granted 
since both roads fall under their jurisdiction. 
 
In terms of the Auto Body Shop property, heavy automobile repair and maintenance is permitted 
as a special exception in the CGN district.  Therefore, if annexation is approved, staff would 
recommend granting a special exception to keep from creating a non-conforming use. Staff 
would also recommend that a variance be granted from the location requirements which 
currently specifies that “no automobile repair use may be located where noise would have an 
adverse impact on commercial uses within 200 feet or located within 500 feet of a residential, 
office, planned development, or open space district”.  It should also be mentioned that the Tax 
Assessors office indicated that the body shop’s property tax would increase by $39.53 per year 
if the property is annexed into the city limits (based on the current millage rate).  The 
occupational tax would increase roughly $650.   
 
Staff Assessment – ADDITIONAL TRAFFIC, BUT IT WILL NOT AFFECT THE USABILITY 
OF THE ADJACENT OR NEARBY PROPERTIES AND THE 35’ DENSLEY PLANTED 

BUFFER WILL SEPARATE THE RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL TRACTS  
 
Are their substantial reasons why the property cannot or should not be used as currently 
zoned?  Per the County staff report, the properties are currently zoned RC (Rural Conservation) 
and C (Commercial) in the County.  The RC zoning district permits agriculture, forestry, and low 
density single-family residential land uses.  The C district permits commercial development.  

 

With the property being located at the intersection of two arterial roads and with commercial 
development on three sides of the tracts, staff doubts that the properties zoned RC will be 
developed as currently zoned.  Even the County shows this area as an employment center on 
its Future Land Use Map.   The tracts that are zoned for commercial uses could be used as 
currently zoned, but staff believes the RC zoned tracts will ultimately be developed with 
commercial uses. 

65



4 

 

 
Staff Assessment – TRACTS ZONED FOR COMMERCIAL COULD BE USED AS 
CURRENTLY ZONED, BUT RC ZONED TRACTS WILL MORE THAN LIKELY BE 

DEVELOPED AS COMMERCIAL  AND  
 
Will the proposed use cause an excessive or burdensome use of public facilities or 
services, including but not limited to streets, schools, water or sewer utilities, and police 
or fire protection?  
 
Since the tracts are part of a 60% annexation, state law requires that a service extension plan 
be developed to address water and sewer provision, sanitation services, fire, police and 
transportation.  A copy of the plan has been included as part of the agenda packet.   

 
Traffic: 
 
Since no uses or square footages are being proposed for the tracts except for the existing auto 
body repair shop, staff is unable to determine what the traffic generation from the development 
will be.  However, both roads are arterials and are designed to handle greater volumes of traffic.  
Since both roads are state routes, the GDOT has jurisdiction and any permitting for connecting 
to the roads would be by application through their agency. 
 
Police:  Police Chief Brent Blankenship has indicated that his department can service the 
development if it is annexed into the city limits.  Since no specific uses have been provided, full 
impact of the development in terms of calls is yet to be determined. 

  
Fire: Chief Stephen Brown has indicated that NFD can service this development.  Again, since 
no specific uses have been provided, full impact in terms of calls is yet to be determined.  
 
Newnan Utilities:  Scott Tolar reviewed the project and indicated that there is ample capacity to 
serve the proposed facility.  He stated that “water will require the developer to jack and bore 
North Highway 29 to serve lots with domestic water and fire protection.  Sewer, depending on 
design, may require an approved sewer lift station”.  Tolar added that all utility construction 
expenses will be at the developer’s cost.   
 
Engineering: 

 
Environmental: 
 

1. The development plan shall follow the design standards and guidance per the Georgia 
Storm Water Management Manual, in compliance with the Post-Development 
Stormwater Management Ordinance for the City of Newnan. 
Note on-site, runoff reduction now required. 

 
2. The development plan shall include a three-phase erosion plan in compliance with the 

City of Newnan Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control Ordinance. 
 

3. All streams, wetlands and other environmentally sensitive areas shall be field delineated 
and located within open space to the extent practically possible.   
 

66



5 

 

Prior to issuance of a permit for conducting land disturbing activities, documentation and 
or/ sufficient evidence shall be provided to the City of Newnan, as the Local Issuing 
Authority, regarding any required mitigations measures or permits by other agencies. 

 
4. Standard stream buffers apply.  Reference is made to the City of Newnan, Georgia 

Stream Buffer Protection Ordinance. 
 

5. Any existing wells or septic tanks that may be on the site will need to be identified and 
properly closed or removed. 

 
Transportation: 
 

1. ADA compliant sidewalks, 5 feet in width, shall be provided throughout the proposed 
development along both sides of all public streets, and 6 feet in width along SR 34 
Bypass, subject to review by the Georgia Department of Transportation. 

 
2. Traffic Impact Study may be required. 

 
Coweta County Schools:  As this will be a commercial subdivision, there will be no impact on 
the Coweta County School System. 
 
Staff Assessment –ALL SERVICE PROVIDERS HAVE INDICATED THAT THEY CAN 
SERVE THE DEVELOPMENT, WHICH IS EVIDENCED BY THE SERVICE PROVISION 
PLAN.  FULL IMPACT ON TRAFFIC CAN NOT BE DETERMINED UNTIL THE USES ARE 
FINALIZED; HOWEVER, THE TRACTS ARE LOCATED AT THE INTERSECTION OF TWO 
ARTERIAL ROADS AND GDOT WILL REQUIRE THE DEVELOPER TO PROVIDE ANY 

MITIGATION MEASURES NEEDED TO ADDRESS THE INCREASED VOLUME.  
 
Is the proposed use compatible with the purpose and intent of the Comprehensive Plan?  
The property is outside of the city limits and therefore was not considered in the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.  The County’s Comprehensive Plan shows the area as an “Employment 
Center” character area which would allow for commercial uses.  The City does show the 
adjacent tracts to the east as “Planned Development” and the tracts across North Highway 29 
as “Business/Office”.  Both of these categories would be consistent with the zoning designation 
being requested as both would allow commercial uses.     
 

Staff Assessment – THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT WOULD BE COMPATIBLE   
 
Is the proposed use consistent with the purpose and intent of the proposed zoning 
district?  The CGN (General Commercial District) zoning designation provides for “the conduct 
of community-wide personal and business services, specialty shops, and general highway 
development”. The zoning ordinance specifies that the district is “located ideally at the 
intersection of two or more streets or along selected major streets designated for strip 
commercial development”.  In this case, the proposed commercial subdivision would be located 
at an intersection and along two major streets. 
 
Staff Assessment – PROPOSED USE IS CONSISTENT WITH THE PROPOSED ZONING 

DISTRICT REQUESTED   
 

67



6 

 

Is the proposed use supported by new or changing conditions not anticipated by the 
Comprehensive Plan?  The City completed a full update of its Comprehensive Plan in 2021 
which included the future land use map. The subject tracts were not included in the 
Comprehensive Plan, but the adjacent tracts to the east and across Highway 29 North are 
shown as future designations which would permit commercial uses.  If brought into the city 
limits, Staff would suggest designating the tracts as “Business/Office” based on our future land 
use definitions.   

 

Staff Assessment – THERE ARE NO NEW OR CHANGING CONDITIONS THAT WOULD 

IMPACT THE SUBJECT PROPERTY’S FUTURE DESIGNATION  
 
Does the proposed use reflect a reasonable balance between the promotion of the public 
health, safety, morality, or general welfare and the right to unrestricted use of property?   
 
As stated above, these properties are located at the intersection of two arterial streets.  Three of 
the tracts are already zoned commercial in the County and the County’s future land use map 
shows the tracts as future “employment center”.  Commercial uses are already established on 
the two adjacent tracts to the east of the properties as well as the tracts across both Highway 29 
North and Millard Farmer Industrial Boulevard.  These tracts are also shown as future 
commercial designations by their respective jurisdictions.  While the tracts do back up to homes 
in Avery Park, three of them are already zoned commercial in the County and a 35 foot densely 
planted buffer would be required between the subject properties to separate the uses. 
   
The greatest impact will be traffic; however, these properties are at the intersection of two 
arterial roads, which are designed to handle higher traffic volumes and the City Engineer has 
indicated that a traffic impact study may be required, dependent upon the uses that ultimately 
are proposed for the properties and GDOT’s requirements for development along state 
highways. 
 
It should also be mentioned that annexation of these parcels would open up the possibility of 
annexing and redeveloping the old Coweta Fayette EMC site. Staff has received numerous 
requests from potential developers in the past, but the creation of an island has always 
prevented them from moving forward. 
 
Staff Assessment – THE PROPOSED PROJECT WOULD REFLECT A REASONABLE 

BALANCE -  
 
SUMMARY OF STAFF FINDINGS: 

 
After assessing the project based on the standards to be considered for rezoning/annexation 
requests, Staff found that the development meets 7 1/2 of the 8 standards. 
 
   
COWETA COUNTY RESPONSE TO THE ANNEXATION: 
 
In accordance with the annexation laws, the City notified the County of the request once the City 
Council decided to accept the application and move forward with the public hearing process.  
The County reviewed the application and advised the City of their intent NOT to file a Notice of 
Objection.  They also did not request any conditions be added to the adopting ordinance if the 
annexation were to be approved. 

68



7 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning Commission at their April 12, 2022 meeting held a public hearing regarding the 
request and unanimously to recommend the annexation and rezoning to CGN (General 
Commercial District) with the following conditions:    
  

• The Newnan Auto Body and Glass Repair tract should be granted a special exception to 

allow their business to be a conforming use and a variance from the distance 

requirements from planned developments and residential properties. 

 

• The tracts will be included in the Quality Development Corridor Overlay District. 

 

• The developer will save the mature trees within the 35’ buffer area between the 

proposed commercial subdivision and the Avery Park lots and supplement the buffer 

with additional plantings as approved by the City’s Landscape Architect. 

 

• The proffered condition that North 390, LLC will erect a privacy fence along the property 

line between Newnan Auto Body and Glass Repair and the proposed commercial 

subdivision. 

 

OPTIONS:   

 
A. Approve the annexation request as submitted 

B. Approve the annexation request with conditions 

C. Deny the annexation request 

 
ATTACHMENTS: Application for Annexation 
   Location Map 
   County Notice of Objection  

Service Extension Plan 
Engineering Department Comments 
  

69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



 

Page 1 of 3 

 

22 East Broad St. 
Newnan, GA 30263 
www.coweta.ga.us 

770-254-2635 

To:     Board of Commissioners 

 

From:     Angela B. White 

 

Date:     March 16, 2022 

 

Re:     Proposed Annexation, City of Newnan 

HB 2 Annexation Procedures 

Applicant:  North 390, LLC    

5.19± acres located at SR 34 Bypass & US Hwy 29 N 

Newnan  

Tax ID# 073C 002, 073C 002A, 073C 003; 

                 073C 004 & 073C 004A       

Petition # AN 002-22 

3rd Commission District 

 

The City of Newnan is proposing the annexation of 5.19± acres located on US Hwy 29N & SR 34 E 

Bypass.  The applicant is submitting under the 60% method which allows for petitioners representing 

owners of at least 60% of the property in the area to be annexed plus at least 60% of the resident electors 

in the area to be annexed to sign a petition to have their property annexed into an adjacent city.  In this 

event, 4 of the 5 parcels are under the ownership of North 390, LLC.  

 

Attorney Griffis has filed the annexation application requesting the City of Newnan’s zoning of CGN 

(Commercial General) to allow for a commercial subdivision with the exception of 073C 002, which will 

retain its current use, the Newnan AutoBody & Glass Shop. 

 

Various county departments have reviewed the annexation proposal and specifically identified their 

comments as follows: 

 

Building Department 

The Building Department does not have any concerns regarding this proposed annexation. 

 

Emergency Management/ E-911 

The Office of Emergency Management / 911 does not have any concerns with this request.  

 

Water and Sewage Authority 

No concerns  

 

Fire Department 

We have no objections to this request. 

 

Environmental Health 

The CCEHD has no objection to the above referenced annexation request.  The proposed development 

will be required to connect to municipal water and sewer.  If you have any questions, please contact our 

office. 

 

110



Page 2 of 3 

 

Public Works-Engineering/Transportation Departments 

Both highways are under the jurisdiction of the Georgia Department of Transportation.  All permitting 

will be through their authority. 

 

Planner 

After reviewing the Annexation Petition from the City of Newnan for AN 002-22, I provide the following 

information: 

1. A substantial change in zoning or land use 

The property is currently zoned Rural Conservation (RC) and Commercial (C).  

The proposed annexation is for commercial use through a city zoning of a General 

Commercial District, CGN. 

 

The annexation is not anticipated to have a substantial impact on the county's zoning or 

land use due to the following: 

• The subject's non-residential property is currently encompassed by non-

residential land use towards the east, south, and west. 

• The property is located at the intersection of a principal arterial and a minor 

arterial.  

 

PLANNING 

The county governing authority may by majority vote to object to the annexation because of a material 

increase in burden upon the county directly related to any one or more of the following: 

 

1. Substantial change in zoning or land use 

 

2. Substantial increase in density 

 

3. Substantial infrastructure demands related to the proposed change in zoning or land use 

 

 

In order for an objection to be valid, the proposed change in zoning or land use must result in: 

 

1. A substantial change in the intensity of the allowable use of the property or a change to a 

significantly different allowable use; OR 

2. A use which significantly increases the net cost of infrastructure or significantly 

diminishes the value or useful life of a capital outlay project; AND 

  

3. Differ substantially from the existing uses suggested for the property pursuant to the 

county’s zoning ordinance or its land use ordinances. 

 

Findings: 

 

 

Based upon staff review, the following information is provided: 

 

1. There is not a substantial change or increate in density nor does it differ substantially from the 

land use ordinance.  

 

111



Page 3 of 3 

 

Therefore, based upon the above staff comments and the HB 2 Annexation Procedures for Objection, the 

Coweta County Community Development Department submits these Findings for the Board to consider.  

With such, the criteria for no objection has been provided to the Board for consideration.    

 

 

 

Cc: Michael Fouts, County Administrator  

 Jerry Ann Conner, County Attorney 

 Jon Amason, Community Development Director 

 Brad Sears, City of Newnan Attorney  

             Tracy Dunnavant, City of Newnan Planning & Zoning Director  

             Melissa Griffis, Esq. – Applicant Attorney  

112



113



114



115



116



117



118



  

25 La Grange Street                 ●              Newnan, Georgia  30263                ●              (678) 673-5560 

The City of Newnan, Georgia 
 

Office of the City Engineer 
  

 

 

 

 

April 6, 2022 
 
City Engineer Review 
 
ANNEXATION REQUEST/ REZONING REQUEST: 

5 Parcels, SR 34 Bypass at SR 14 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Environmental: 
 

1. The development plan shall follow the design standards and guidance per the Georgia 
Storm Water Management Manual, in compliance with the Post-Development 
Stormwater Management Ordinance for the City of Newnan. 
Note on-site, runoff reduction now required. 

 
2. The development plan shall include a three-phase erosion plan in compliance with the 

City of Newnan Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control Ordinance. 
 

3. All streams, wetlands and other environmentally sensitive areas shall be field delineated 
and located within open space to the extent practically possible.   
 

Prior to issuance of a permit for conducting land disturbing activities, documentation 
and or/ sufficient evidence shall be provided to the City of Newnan, as the Local Issuing 
Authority, regarding any required mitigations measures or permits by other agencies. 

 
4. Standard stream buffers apply.  Reference is made to the City of Newnan, Georgia 

Stream Buffer Protection Ordinance. 
 

5. Any existing wells or septic tanks that may be on the site will need to be identified and 
properly closed or removed. 

 
Transportation: 
 

1. ADA compliant sidewalks, 5 feet in width, shall be provided throughout the proposed 
development along both sides of all public streets, and 6 feet in width along SR 34 
Bypass, subject to review by the Georgia Department of Transportation. 

 
2. Traffic Impact Study may be required. 

 
Respectively, 

Michael Klahr 
William M. Klahr, P.E., CFM 
Director of Engineering 

119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



Motion to Enter into Executive Session 
 
I move that we now enter into closed session as allowed by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4 and 
pursuant to advice by the City Attorney, for the purpose of discussing  
 
 
And that we, in open session, adopt a resolution authorizing and directing the Mayor or 
presiding officer to execute an affidavit in compliance with O.C.G.A. §50-14-4, and that 
this body ratify the actions of the Council taken in closed session and confirm that the 
subject matters of the closed session were within exceptions permitted by the open 
meetings law. 
 
 

Motion to Adopt Resolution after Adjourning Back into Regular Session 
 
I move that we adopt the resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the affidavit stating 
that the subject matter of the closed portion of the council meeting was within the 
exceptions provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4(b). 
 

177


	Top
	A.	Special Called Meeting Minutes 4/12/22
	4.12.22 special called meeting

	B.	Regular meeting minutes
	4.12.22 minutes

	C.	1 Appointment- NURA
	D.	4 Appointments- Youth Activities
	E.	Youth Council- Graduating Seniors
	F.	Presentation of external requests for funds under the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
	04.26.2022 Agenda Items Updated
	Boys and Girls Club Application Summary
	Let Them Eat Toffee Application Summary
	Polish Me Pretty Application Summary

	G.	Annexation Request - Annex 2022-03 by Sprayberry's Barbecue, Inc; 1.224± acres located at 30 Amlajack Boulevard - Decision on Referral to Planning Commission
	Council Agenda Item Report - Decision to Proceed
	097 5077 012
	Application

	H.	Request for Jazz in the Park
	City Council Meeting Request for Jazz in the Park

	I.	Public Hearing - Demo structure older than 50 years
	Agenda Packet 100 E Washington

	J.	Public Hearing - request by owner to demolish structure.
	Agenda Packet 90 Sprayberry Rd

	K.	Public Hearing - Annexation Request - Annex 2022-02 (via the 60% annexation method); 5.19± acres on State Route 29 and Millard Farmer Industrial Boulevard; Requested Zoning of CGN - Consideration of Ordinances
	Final MC Agenda Item
	North 390 annex rev_20220419161623
	Nort 390 zoning rev_20220419161744

	L.	Request from Rotary
	Rotary request for crosses
	Rotary cross

	M.	Motion to Enter into Exec Session
	Motion to Enter into Executive Session

	Bottom

